



# **A LEVEL**

**Examiners' report** 

# GEOGRAPHY

# H481

For first teaching in 2016

H481/02 Summer 2022 series

# Contents

Introduction	3
Paper 2 series overview	4
Section A: Changing spaces; making places, overview	5
Question 1 (a)	5
Question 1 (b)	6
Question 1 (c)	7
Question 1 (d)*	7
Section B: Global connections, overview	8
Option A: Trade in the Contemporary World, overview.	8
Question 2*	8
Option B: Global Migration, overview.	9
Question 3*	9
Option C: Human Rights, overview	10
Question 4 (a)	10
Question 4 (b)	11
Question 4 (c)	12
Option D: Power and Borders, overview	13
Question 5 (a)	13
Question 5 (b)	13
Question 5 (c)	14

# Introduction

Our examiners' reports are produced to offer constructive feedback on candidates' performance in the examinations. They provide useful guidance for future candidates.

The reports will include a general commentary on candidates' performance, identify technical aspects examined in the questions and highlight good performance and where performance could be improved. A selection of candidate answers is also provided. The reports will also explain aspects which caused difficulty and why the difficulties arose, whether through a lack of knowledge, poor examination technique, or any other identifiable and explainable reason.

Where overall performance on a question/question part was considered good, with no particular areas to highlight, these questions have not been included in the report.

A full copy of the question paper and the mark scheme can be downloaded from OCR.

#### Advance Information for Summer 2022 assessments

To support student revision, advance information was published about the focus of exams for Summer 2022 assessments. Advance information was available for most GCSE, AS and A Level subjects, Core Maths, FSMQ, and Cambridge Nationals Information Technologies. You can find more information on our <u>website</u>.

#### Would you prefer a Word version?

Did you know that you can save this PDF as a Word file using Acrobat Professional?

Simply click on File > Export to and select Microsoft Word

(If you have opened this PDF in your browser you will need to save it first. Simply right click anywhere on the page and select **Save as . . .** to save the PDF. Then open the PDF in Acrobat Professional.)

If you do not have access to Acrobat Professional there are a number of **free** applications available that will also convert PDF to Word (search for PDF to Word converter).

# Paper 2 series overview

There was a very wide range in the nature and quality of candidate responses. Overall there was no obvious difference in performance between the two main sections: A, Changing Spaces; Making Places and B, Global Connections. There was also no apparent difference in performance between the option pairs: Trade in the Contemporary World and Global Migration, and Human Rights and Power and Borders.

A high proportion of candidates chose to answer questions on Global Migration rather than on Trade in the Contemporary World. There was a more even balance in choice between Human Rights and Power and Borders.

Candidates who did well on this paper generally did the following:	Candidates who did less well on this paper generally did the following:	
<ul> <li>provided detailed and accurate analysis of resources in the Resource Booklet, especially the Ordnance Survey maps</li> <li>gave responses for the lower-, medium-tariff questions, that were concise and to the point, yet with sufficient development of explanation</li> <li>wrote well-structured essays, including an introduction, use of paragraphs for each main point and a conclusion, as indicated by the Level 3 descriptor for Quality of Extended Response in the mark scheme</li> <li>applied their knowledge and understanding of place-specific detail thoroughly in answering the essay questions</li> <li>within essays, made clear attempts to be evaluative in the context of the question, making secure judgements and rational conclusions which were evidence based / substantiated</li> <li>made secure use of geographical terminology</li> <li>managed their time appropriately and weighted their responses relative to the marks available</li> <li>produced a consistently good performance throughout the paper for all part questions.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>produced essays that were unstructured; a brief essay plan might have helped them to identify the main factors / issues and provided the basis for a clearer more logical line of reasoning</li> <li>for essays, either wrote out case study knowledge per se without any other commentary, or identified the relevant factors / issues but did not support them with any appropriate place-specific detail</li> <li>did not understand that the essay questions have an evaluative requirement, not just the need for knowledge and understanding of the topic</li> <li>showed limited understanding that any evaluative comments made should be substantiated with appropriate evidence</li> <li>attempted to provide place-specific detail but with insufficient depth or accuracy, especially with respect to influences on social inequality, impacts of international trade / migration and other questions that required a case study</li> <li>did not consider time allocation; some responses for shorter data-response questions were unnecessarily lengthy, repetitive and without clear focus.</li> </ul>	

#### Candidate Exam Work

Handwriting legibility remains a significant problem. Every effort has been made to be fair to candidates, but it has been reported by examiners even more strongly this year that in many instances scripts have been very difficult to read and interpret.

For those scripts that have been *word-processed*, it would be of great help to examiners in application of the annotations if text could be *double-spaced*.

# Section A: Changing spaces; making places, overview.

Topics assessed this year in the Changing Spaces, Making Places section of the specification included: how local community groups shape the place they live; the impacts of economic change in an area of dockland; how cultural characteristics shape place identity at local scale; and the influence of education and other factors on social inequality. The resources to be analysed included: an advertisement for the Lincolnshire Co-op Community Champions scheme; and two OS 1:50 000 map extracts of a dockland area in east London for 1974 and 2016.

#### Candidate Exam Work

Candidates should consider the marks allocation for questions in Section A and then apportion their time and length of response accordingly. Some lengthy responses for the earlier parts, notably Question 1 (a), Question 1 (c), and to an extent Question 1 (b) demonstrated lack of focus and much repetitiveness. This may have been a factor that restricted time available to spend on questions later in the paper, especially Question 4 (c)/5 (c).

## Question 1 (a)

1 (a) Study **Fig. 1**, an advertisement for the Lincolnshire Co-op Community Champions scheme.

Use **one** piece of evidence from **Fig. 1** to explain how local community groups can shape the place in which they live. [3]

There was 1 mark for stating appropriate evidence and 2 further marks for developing the explanation. The most frequently identified piece of evidence from Fig. 1 was the group of people collecting litter and recycling plastic bottles. This was used to help explain how local community groups can shape the place in which they live with reference to the work of residents' associations or environmental groups in maintaining clean and safe recreational spaces. The idea that members of a local community often work together and involve children was also frequently discussed. Exemplar 1 was typical of many responses that achieved both AO2 and AO3 marks.

#### Exemplar 1

	a	Figure 1 demonstrates utter collection
		and waste removal by families for
		recycling. This may be carried out
		by local environmental charities
		who aim to improve weed and
		reduce local pollution. As a
		result, the place may be deened
		healthier and greener, creating
	<u>.                                    </u>	an image of safety for families,
		thereby proving how local community
		groups shape the place by
		improving environmental quality
		and thus the quality of life.

#### Question 1 (b)

(b) Study Fig. 2, which shows OS 1:50000 map extracts of a dockland area in east London for 1974 and 2016.

Using evidence from **Fig. 2**, examine the impacts of economic change in the area shown. **[8]** 

Most responses recognised the structural economic change that had taken place in the area of dockland shown on the OS maps. The impact of this change was often examined in terms of urban growth north of the Royal Albert Dock, including greater transport connectivity (road and rail) and provision of services (School, University). This was further developed by reference to probable flows of people in and out of the area for commuting and recreation (City Farm, London Regatta Centre), plus comments on the impact on the local economy. Other frequently discussed impacts included the development of the London City Airport on a former dockside strip of land with easy links to the City for business and how this might create local employment opportunity, and connection to the Exhibition Centre. Some responses focused on the river; such as construction of the Thames Barrier and flood control, or the recreational activity associated with the Thames Path and Capital Ring. It was clear that detail on the OS maps had been closely investigated and analysed in support of any explanations.

More basic responses tended to offer only generalised ideas about the impacts of economic change with limited or no link to map evidence. For example, infrastructure was a term frequently used in a general way without reference to any specific element and often unsupported by map evidence. Some candidates wrote about the impacts of economic change in other localities they had studied rather than in the area shown on the map extracts.

#### OCR support

Candidates should be familiar with the meaning of the <u>command words</u> used in examination questions.

The command word 'examine' as used in Question 1 (b) requires candidates to 'look in close detail and establish the key facts and important issues' – in the context of the specific question and the OS resource provided.

## Question 1 (c)

(c) Explain how cultural characteristics might shape place identity at local scale.

[6]

The better responses to this question made the explicit link between cultural characteristics of a place at local scale and their influence on place identity. There was much reference to the impact of various religious groups on the built environment (temples, mosques, churches, synagogues) and how religious festivals were significant in the differing religious calendars in some areas. The impact of ethnic groups on language, food / restaurants, clothing, music and retail was also very well covered by many candidates. There was frequent reference to specific named localities in Liverpool, Birmingham and London. Place-specific detail was not a requirement for full marks but this often helped to reinforce good understanding by providing a useful geographical context. Some candidates also referred appropriately to the impact of sporting events, sports facilities, arts and music festivals, and heritage characteristics in shaping place identity.

# Question 1 (d)\*

(d)\* How far do you agree that education is the main influence on social inequality? [16]

This guestion elicited an interesting and diverse range of responses and exemplar material. Most candidates considered influences on social inequality in a spatial context and often at different scales. Many also recognised that these influences could be categorised as economic, social and political and that they are interrelated. The better responses tended to be logically structured with a well-developed line of reasoning as indicated in the Level 3 descriptor for Quality of Extended Response. These responses were often preceded by a helpful short essay plan. They included an introductory paragraph, clear sections or paragraphs for each main influential factor and a conclusion that linked back to the question. Some candidates, though, wrote all they knew about standards of living and quality of life in localities / case studies they had learnt but did not use this material to answer the question with any clarity. It would have been more appropriate to identify and discuss the influences such as education, housing, income, health, gender, access to services, and to support each point with reference to selected material from their case studies. Some candidates misused the term social inequality, equating it only with the lower end of the spectrum in terms of poverty, poor living conditions, limited education opportunity, poor quality housing. They should understand that the term is defined as the unequal distribution of these factors across a population. Place-specific detail that was applied to good effect in answering the question included the textbook examples of Toxteth, Liverpool, Lympstone, Devon, Jembatan Besi, Jakarta, and Northwood, California, especially where comparisons were made across these areas / populations. There were many other valid and useful examples from a variety of locations especially urban wards within the UK such as in Cambridge, Bristol, the Isle of Thanet and London boroughs.

# Section B: Global connections, overview.

The two Global Systems options (Trade in the Contemporary World and Global Migration) were assessed using essay, high-tariff, questions, and the two global governance options (Human Rights and Power and Borders) were assessed by shorter, low- and medium -tariff, questions.

# Option A: Trade in the Contemporary World, overview.

The essay question on Trade in the Contemporary World was derived from Key Idea 2b in the specification – there is interdependence between countries and their trading partners. Specifically the question assessed the impact of trade in the context of one EDC case study.

# Question 2\*

#### Option A – Trade in the contemporary world

2\* 'The impacts of international trade are always beneficial.' Assess this statement with reference to a case study of one EDC. [16]

There were a number of strong responses in which candidates demonstrated thorough knowledge and understanding of benefits and disadvantages of international trade for a named EDC. These responses also included accurate place-specific detail. India, a textbook example, was by far the most cited EDC. The better responses discussed the benefits of gaining foreign exchange through the country's exports of merchandise, and the advantages to the country and specific geographical regions of foreign direct investment. Service industries too were referred to in many responses with reference to the impact of examples of outsourcing in India. Candidates also recognised that the impacts were not only economic but also social and political, identified by discussion of the impact on internal migration, family income, provision of services, and relationships with China regarding business and environmental issues. The most successful responses showed application of knowledge and understanding of these impacts with clear and convincing analysis. Many candidates considered a historical perspective for India with reference to changes over time. They included not only benefits but also some disadvantages of the effects of international trade on the EDC such as local scale issues including atmospheric and water pollution, exploitation of employees and exacerbation of socio-economic inequality. Responses in the lower levels included only generalised comments which were often unsupported; place-specific detail of an EDC was limited or not provided at all.

## Option B: Global Migration, overview.

The essay question on Global Migration was derived from Key Idea 2b in the specification – corridors of migrant flows create interdependence between countries. Specifically the question assessed the impact of international migration in the context of one EDC case study.

## Question 3\*

#### **Option B – Global migration**

3\* 'The impacts of international migration are always beneficial.' Assess this statement with reference to a case study of one EDC. [16]

There were a number of strong responses in which candidates demonstrated thorough knowledge and understanding of benefits and disadvantages of international migration for a named EDC. These responses included accurate place-specific detail. Brazil, a textbook example, was by far the most cited EDC but others seen such as Mexico were equally valid. The better responses discussed economic benefits such as financial remittances, past inflows of migrants taking on low-skilled jobs in agriculture and manufacturing, and skilled immigrant populations also reducing gaps in the labour market. Candidates also recognised that benefits were not only economic but also social and political. For example, social remittances and bi-lateral relationships contributing to more stable political relationships were frequently referred to, especially Brazil-USA. The most successful responses applied knowledge and understanding of these impacts with clear and convincing analysis. Many discursive responses included not only benefits but also disadvantages of the effects of international migration on the EDC including the 'brain drain' effect, impacts of emigration on population structure, inequalities, prejudice and discrimination.

Less successful responses tended to include only generalised comments which were often unsupported; in these instances place-specific detail of an EDC was limited or not provided at all and occasionally a country that is not an EDC was chosen. On the other hand some candidates presented much place-specific detail for the case study they had learnt but did not apply this to the question that had been set.

#### OCR support

It could be helpful to consider the <u>IMF classifications of ACs, EDCs and LIDCs</u> adopted by OCR for AS and A Level Geography.

#### Assessment for learning

It might be helpful to some candidates to reinforce the point that for all essay questions indicated by an asterisk (\*) on this paper, there are as many marks for *application* of knowledge and understanding (AO2 x 8) as there are for knowledge and understanding *per se.* (AO1 x 8). It is important for candidates to learn place-specific detail for each of the case studies required in the specification, but it is equally important that this place-specific detailed is used to support points that have been made rather than just writing out the case study material with little or no reference to the question that has been set. This was an issue for some candidates in the Global Connections options on Trade and Migration. Many of the better responses tended to include a sentence at the end of each paragraph that summarised the main points and made an explicit link to the requirements of the question.

# Option C: Human Rights, overview

The topics chosen for assessment of human rights included: the contribution of NGOs in areas of human rights violation (the resource provided for evaluation was a photograph of villagers being addressed in Jharkhand, India); access to reproductive health services for women; and, from Key Idea 4a in the specification (global governance of human rights has consequences for citizens and places), the impact of global governance in creating opportunities for development in an LIDC.

# Question 4 (a)

#### **Option C – Human rights**

4 (a) Study Fig. 3, which shows villagers in Jharkhand, India, being addressed by NGO workers about their land rights.

Suggest **two** limitations of the photograph as a source of information about NGO assistance in areas of human rights violation. [4]

Most candidates identified two limitations of the photograph, although not all achieved the second mark that was available for suggesting some further explanation or development of the point. The better responses contained discussion of the photograph as a source of NGO assistance by linking the stated limitation to an aspect of the role of NGOs in areas of human rights violation as prompted by the question. The most frequent type of response referred to scale, either in terms of numbers of villagers involved or to geographical extent of the issue of land rights. Other good responses referred to the differing roles of NGOs in helping the villagers beyond the apparent provision of education / information / advice depicted, and to the relative success of the assistance provided.

Exemplar 2 is a typical response where there has been sufficient development of the limitations identified. This approach is encouraged rather than that found in a number of brief, undeveloped, responses that were seen in note form.

#### Exemplar 2

ų	a	The photograph shows no true
		indication of the quality or range of
	-	advice given. There may be lots of
		people listening but we don't know if the
		information is accessible to them. It doesn't
		show now successful NGO assisstance is
		as there is no evidence of people
		staying to actively help in the
		implementation of their land nights. From
		the photo it locks like only male
	<u>.</u>	willagers being educated so it doesn't
		show the scale of assisstance of
		the ways in which it vanies as only
-		education is being portrayed.

## Question 4 (b)

(b) Explain how two obstacles for women might limit their access to reproductive health services. [5]

This question was answered well although some candidates would have achieved more marks by responding to the command words 'explain how' rather than basically just identifying the obstacles. The most frequently given responses related to lack of female empowerment in patriarchal societies, gender bias in education affecting females in some countries, poverty, and simply the more limited access for females living in remoter rural areas especially in LIDCs where there are fewer reproductive health services and where transport is more limited. Many candidates developed two of these points thoroughly enough for a mark in Level 2. Most candidates set their response in a geographical context; although not a requirement, this often helped to reinforce thorough understanding of the issues.

# Question 4 (c)

(c) With reference to one LIDC case study, explain the opportunities for development created by global governance of human rights. [8]

Nearly all candidates selected an appropriate LIDC on which to base their response. The text book example of Honduras was the main choice, but others were equally valid. There were some very high quality responses in which candidates demonstrated thorough knowledge and understanding of a range of differing organisations and how their global governance strategies created opportunities for development. In these instances reference to the specific agencies of the UN operating in the LIDC, and their work in co-operation with the national government, the corporate social responsibility of named TNCs, and various named NGOs demonstrated accurate place-specific detail. The better responses included discussion of specific global governance strategies and explicitly how they have created opportunities for the country's development, sometimes both in the shorter and in the longer term, such as education, gender equality, food security and health.

Some responses were more basic and referred only to the broad term 'global governance' and to the possible impact on a country's 'development' again only in very general terms. In many instances such as these place-specific detail for the named LIDC was limited to no more than the name of the country at the start of the response.

# Option D: Power and Borders, overview

The topics chosen for assessment of Power and Borders included: the intervention of NGOs in areas of conflict (the resource provided for evaluation was a photograph of South Sudanese refugees being registered at the Uganda border); factors that influence the loss of territorial integrity; and, from Key Idea 4a in the specification (global governance of sovereignty and territorial integrity has consequences for citizens and places), the impact of global governance in creating opportunities for development in an LIDC.

## Question 5 (a)

#### **Option D – Power and borders**

**5** (a) Study Fig. 4, which shows South Sudanese refugees being registered by NGO workers at the Uganda border.

Suggest **two** limitations of the photograph as a source of information about NGO assistance in areas of conflict. [4]

Most candidates identified two limitations of the photograph, although not all achieved a second mark in each instance. Marks were available for suggesting some further explanation or development of the point. The better responses contained discussion of the photograph as a source of NGO assistance by linking the stated limitation to an aspect of the role of NGOs in areas of conflict as prompted by the question. The most frequent responses related to scale concerning the possible number of refugees over time, and to geographical scale in relation to the possible number of border crossings. Other good responses referred to the wider roles of NGOs in helping the refugees beyond that of just registration as depicted. Development of responses, in this instance in the context of NGO intervention, is encouraged; there were a number of brief, undeveloped, responses that were seen in note form.

## Question 5 (b)

(b) Explain how two different types of challenge to sovereign states might cause loss of their territorial integrity. [5]

Many candidates answered this question well, achieving a mark in Level 2. There was often good discussion of claims for secession by national groups such as Basque separatism, contested territory such as the annexation of Crimea by Russia, and where arbitrary political boundaries, drawn up in the past, has led to ethnic partitioning. Use of exemplar material to support the responses often reinforced good understanding. Some candidates discussed challenges to sovereignty that were not linked to territorial integrity. Others wrote only very brief comments that correctly identified a type of challenge but without the further development suggested by the command words 'explain how'.

# Question 5 (c)

(c) With reference to one LIDC case study, explain the opportunities for development created by global governance of either sovereignty or territorial integrity. [8]

Most candidates selected an appropriate LIDC on which to base their response; the text book examples of Mali and South Sudan were the main choices, but others were equally valid. There were some very high quality responses in which candidates demonstrated thorough knowledge and understanding of the differing organisations and how their global governance strategies created opportunities for development. For example, the specific agencies of the UN operating in the LIDC, and their work in co-operation with a national government and various named NGOs demonstrated the accurate place-specific detail needed to support a higher level response. A feature of the better responses was reference to specific global governance strategies and explicit links to the ways in which they have created opportunities for the country's development. This often included initial short term effects, but even more appropriate in the context of the question, longer term impacts on education, training in agriculture, food security, health, provision of services, government stability, strengthening state apparatus and ensuring democratic elections were discussed.

Some responses were more basic and referred only to the broad idea of 'global governance' and to the possible impact on a county's 'development' in very general terms with limited place-specific detail for the named LIDC. In many instances such as these place-specific detail for the named LIDC was limited to no more than the name of the country at the start of the response.

Exemplar 3 is a typical example of a higher level response.

#### Exemplar 3

C	Sovereigney is the ability of a nation state to effectively
	givern itself and its population. S. Sudan is an LIDC
	that has seen a large deline is Us development avels
	recently alue to the political infighting between the president
	Who is of the Nuer religious and the Vice - president who
	is of the Dicha religious) which has created serious ormed
	Wonflict, with an ethnic component, resulting in Nowbank
,	of dealers, 1.5 million internally displaced regule, 1 in 3
	children suffering from malnutrition and a further
·	& million (aut of a logalation of roughly 13 million) being
	at rish of food orseanch, (conflict segan in 2013). The
	5. Judan NGO Jovim, Whe organizes 300 NOOS and
	help to repect humanitarian and development needs in
	S. Sudan: for instance, and WHO are woording
	critical cholera treatment centres, and other NGO'S are
1	teaching Locals how to fish whilst wounding fishing
	equippoit) and reaching flem how to harvost yops. As
·	a repute of this werall health will improve and
	food security will rise, helping S-Sudan to develop and
,	2 come more financially independent certails even more
	So than Selve the conflict sogan. Mus the UN peaceheeping
	missin (UNMISS) moved in 2014 Setting
	out to put 17,500 military ressoned in S. Sudan
	as well as 1000 whiteman, and 2500 utters (seing
	(intributed from other nations) which will help to
	2ring peale to the local areas in S. Sudar, allowing
	room for development as continued building such as Schools
	and WELTITALS van se rebuilt, after new seins
	destroyed during the collist. This will help create a Sense
	of Savereignty for the Smith Sudanose annonnant. and will
	ENTOURAGE more Ung - term development aroietts in the
	Juliero
i	

# Supporting you

Post-results services	If any of your students' results are not as expected, you may wish to consider one of our post-results services. For full information about the options available visit the <u>OCR website</u> .
Keep up-to-date	We send a weekly roundup to tell you about important updates. You can also sign up for your subject specific updates. If you haven't already, <u>sign up here</u> .
OCR Professional Development	Attend one of our popular CPD courses to hear directly from a senior assessor or drop in to a Q&A session. Most of our courses are delivered live via an online platform, so you can attend from any location. Please find details for all our courses on the relevant subject page on our <u>website</u> or visit <u>OCR professional development</u> .
Signed up for ExamBuilder?	<ul> <li>ExamBuilder is the question builder platform for a range of our GCSE, A Level, Cambridge Nationals and Cambridge Technicals qualifications. Find out more.</li> <li>ExamBuilder is free for all OCR centres with an Interchange account and gives you unlimited users per centre. We need an Interchange username to validate the identity of your centre's first user account for ExamBuilder.</li> <li>If you do not have an Interchange account please contact your centre administrator (usually the Exams Officer) to request a username, or nominate an existing Interchange user in your department.</li> </ul>
Active Results	<ul> <li>Review students' exam performance with our free online results analysis tool. It is available for all GCSEs, AS and A Levels and Cambridge Nationals.</li> <li>It allows you to: <ul> <li>review and run analysis reports on exam performance</li> <li>analyse results at question and/or topic level</li> <li>compare your centre with OCR national averages</li> <li>identify trends across the centre</li> <li>facilitate effective planning and delivery of courses</li> <li>identify areas of the curriculum where students excel or struggle</li> <li>help pinpoint strengths and weaknesses of students and teaching departments.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>

Find out more.

#### Need to get in touch?

If you ever have any questions about OCR qualifications or services (including administration, logistics and teaching) please feel free to get in touch with our customer support centre.

Call us on 01223 553998

Alternatively, you can email us on support@ocr.org.uk

For more information visit

- ocr.org.uk/qualifications/resource-finder
- ocr.org.uk
- Ø /ocrexams
- /company/ocr
- /ocrexams

#### We really value your feedback

Click to send us an autogenerated email about this resource. Add comments if you want to. Let us know how we can improve this resource or what else you need. Your email address will not be used or shared for any marketing purposes.





Please note – web links are correct at date of publication but other websites may change over time. If you have any problems with a link you may want to navigate to that organisation's website for a direct search.



OCR is part of Cambridge University Press & Assessment, a department of the University of Cambridge.

For staff training purposes and as part of our quality assurance programme your call may be recorded or monitored. © OCR 2022 Oxford Cambridge and RSA Examinations is a Company Limited by Guarantee. Registered in England. Registered office The Triangle Building, Shaftesbury Road, Cambridge, CB2 8EA. Registered company number 3484466. OCR is an exempt charity.

OCR operates academic and vocational qualifications regulated by Ofqual, Qualifications Wales and CCEA as listed in their qualifications registers including A Levels, GCSEs, Cambridge Technicals and Cambridge Nationals.

OCR provides resources to help you deliver our qualifications. These resources do not represent any particular teaching method we expect you to use. We update our resources regularly and aim to make sure content is accurate but please check the OCR website so that you have the most up to date version. OCR cannot be held responsible for any errors or omissions in these resources.

Though we make every effort to check our resources, there may be contradictions between published support and the specification, so it is important that you always use information in the latest specification. We indicate any specification changes within the document itself, change the version number and provide a summary of the changes. If you do notice a discrepancy between the specification and a resource, please <u>contact us</u>.

You can copy and distribute this resource freely if you keep the OCR logo and this small print intact and you acknowledge OCR as the originator of the resource.

OCR acknowledges the use of the following content: N/A

Whether you already offer OCR qualifications, are new to OCR or are thinking about switching, you can request more information using our Expression of Interest form.

Please get in touch if you want to discuss the accessibility of resources we offer to support you in delivering our qualifications.